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contact

From: Helena Payne < >

Sent: 12 November 2018 10:00

To: contact

Cc: James Trimmer

Subject: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant - Section 42 Consultation - PLA Response

FAO: Andrew Troup 

  

Dear Andrew 

  

Thank you for consulting the Port of London Authority (PLA) on the proposed Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant. The PLA’s response relates to the submitted 

Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR), which sets out likely effects of the construction and operation of the scheme. 

  

The PLA has previously made representation on the recent Scoping for the Environmental Statement, which will accompany the application for a 

Development Consent Order (DCO) for the proposed scheme. 

  

For information, the PLA is the statutory port and harbour authority for the tidal River Thames between Teddington and the Thames Estuary. Its statutory 

functions include responsibility for conservancy, hydrographic surveying, dredging, navigation and controlling vessel movements. The PLA also manages and 

maintains the port’s navigational safety management system and Pilotage service.  The PLA’s consent is required for the carrying out of all works and 

dredging within its statutory limits. The PLA’s functions also include for promotion of the use of the river as an important transport corridor for the 

movement of freight and passengers.  

The proposed scheme consists of a new flexible generation plant on land north of Tilbury Substation in Thurrock. The site comprises farm land, part common 

land, in close proximity to a mix of agricultural uses, and other industrial uses including the Tilbury Power Station and a waste water treatment plant. It is 

proposed that the plant will operate as ‘peaking plant’ and battery storage. It will be designed to provide back-up electricity generation capacity to respond 

quickly and efficiently to both short-term variation and intermittent output from renewable energy sources. The proposed DCO would authorise: 

- Reciprocating gas engines with rated electrical output totalling up to 600 MW; 

- Batteries with rated electrical output of 150 MW and storage capacity of up to 600 MWh’s; 

- Gas and electricity connections, new access road, public highway widening; 
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- Designation of replacement common land and possible creation of habitat for protected species translocation; 

- Compulsory acquisition of land/rights over land; 

- Temporary construction compounds 

- Site drainage and waste management infrastructure 

- The application and/or disapplication of legislation relevant to the project 

- Construction, operation and maintenance of associated development; 

- Ancillary works 

  

It is noted that the option of using cooling water from the River Thames, which was included in the Environmental Impact Assessment scoping report is no 

longer being pursued. Accordingly there is no longer a marine element to the proposed scheme. The development boundary no longer includes the Thames 

and therefore the impacts on the river, both from a conservancy, marine ecology and navigational point of view, are now no longer of concern.  

Notwithstanding this, the PLA considers that matters relating to use of the river for the transport of materials must still be developed into the proposed 

scheme going forward. Previous submissions, including the Environmental Impact Assessment have advised that in the construction phase of the 

development, the applicant will consider the option to use barge delivery on the Thames where possible for bulk materials such as aggregates. Whilst the site 

no longer includes the River or the use of existing jetties, the site is not so far removed that it would not benefit from deliveries being made by barge. The 

option of maximising use of the River through the supply chain (the application site is in close proximity to Tilbury Port, which handles goods by river) must 

also be considered as a way of ensuring that more goods are transported by water. The PLA fully supports use of the River in this regard, and given the 

potential use of the river for the transport of materials during the construction phase of the development, it is considered that more can be made of the 

positive impact (for example reduction of CO2 and resultant reduction of lorry movements) from using barges in the transport of goods. The PLA welcomes 

further emphasis being given to this within the forthcoming DCO submission. 

In conclusion, the PLA raises no objection to the proposed Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant, although consideration of the use of the River in the 

transportation of materials and waste, associated with the construction phase of the development, must still be given and taken forward. The proposed 

development will have no other bearing on the PLA’s statutory functions as custodians of the River Thames.  

I trust this is of assistance to you. 
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Regards 

  

Helena 

  

  

  

Helena Payne 

Senior Planner 

Port of London Authority 

  

London River House, Royal Pier Road 
Gravesend, Kent, DA12 2BG 
01474 562385 
WWW.PLA.CO.UK 

  

 

 
Find out about the Cleaner Thames campaign: 

•             Website: www.pla.co.uk/Cleaner-Thames  

•             Film: https://youtu.be/9bsLmgzpHQE  

•             Twitter: @LondonPortAuth #cleanerthames 
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Disclaimer 

 
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, you 
are hereby notified that any use or dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited, and asked to notify us immediately (by return email), then delete this email and your reply. 
Email transmissions cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free and Port of London Authority (PLA) does not accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this 
message. Any views or opinions presented are those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of PLA. 
 
website: www.pla.co.uk  
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Our ref : MF/5120 
 
12 November 2018 
 

BY EMAIL TO  

contact@thurrockpower.co.uk 

 

Thurrock Power Limited 

 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and The Infrastructure Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017(the EIA Regulations)  
 
Application by Thurrock Power Ltd (the Applicant) for an Order granting 
Development Consent for the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant (the Proposed 
Development) 
 
This is the response of our client, Port of Tilbury London Limited (“PoTLL”) to statutory 
consultation on the above scheme.  
 
The comments in this letter are made from the perspective of PoTLL’s role as:- 
 
1. The owner and operator of Port of Tilbury  
2. The owner and promoter of a new Port Terminal on the western part of the former 

Tilbury Power Station site (known as Tilbury2) which is the subject of an application 
prepared, consulted on, assessed and submitted to the Secretary of State in 
October 2017 (reference TR030003) and subject to examination which formally 
closed on 20 August 2018.  The decision on the application will be made by the 
Secretary of State by 20 February 2019.  
 

The Scoping Report for the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant (“TFGP”) was published 
on 10 August 2018, very shortly before the last timetabled submission deadline and formal 
close of the Tilbury2 Examination.  Despite the timing within the Tilbury2 examination 
process, PoTLL prepared and submitted a document to the Tilbury2 Examination entitled 
“Note On Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant” [Tilbury2 library reference number REP7-
024i].  This provided observations on the potential for cumulative effects arising from TFGP 
with Tilbury2 and two other Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects in the vicinity, 
namely Tilbury Energy Centre (“TEC”) and Lower Thames Crossing (“LTC”).   
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On 5th September 2018 we responded to consultation on the Scoping Report.  We note 
that various responses to our submissions (particularly on ecology) are contained within 
the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) for the TFGP scheme.   
 
Order Limits 
 
The TFGP site lies immediately adjoining the northern part of the Tilbury2 site, with a 
common boundary some 500m in length.  The land within the Tilbury2 Order Limits in this 
part of the Tilbury2 site is proposed to be used in part for ecological mitigation and remain 
undeveloped and in part for the construction and aggregates terminal (CMAT).  Works to 
create the ecological mitigation area have already been undertaken in accordance with a 
planning permission approved by Thurrock Council.   
 
It is also noted that the previous overlap in Order Limits that was identified at Scoping 
stage by virtue of the previous area noted as “J” as “Possible S106 planning gain land” 
has now been removed and this is welcomed. 
 
Construction programme 
 
The PEIR sets out the construction period for the TFGP as being from Q1 2021.   
 
PoTLL consider that there will be limited, if any, temporal overlap in the anticipated 
construction programmes of Tilbury2 with TFGP.  If the Tilbury2 DCO is granted, Tilbury2 
will become operational with the opening of the RoRo terminal in Q1 2020.  Construction 
on-site for the remainder of the terrestrial works including the CMAT would continue for 
another 12 months (i.e. until Q1 2021).   
 
It is noted in the Preliminary Environmental Information Report that the start of construction 
work on the main development site at TFGP (zone A), haul road(s) and gas connection is 
expected to be in quarter one (Q1) 2021.  By this time all of the main construction activities 
related to the Tilbury2 proposals (in particular the new lengths of highway and rail line, all 
maritime infrastructure, and the grading and laying of appropriate pavements across the 
site) will be complete and the RoRo terminal, and quite possibly the full extent of the CMAT, 
will be operational.   
 
Indeed, as stated at Scoping Stage, PoTLL consider that the time line set out by the 
applicants for the TFGP is in any event likely to be optimistic considering given th need to 
participate in the competitive Capacity Market auction process.  As such, there are unlikely 
to be cumulative construction environmental effects between Tilbury2 and TFGP due to 
construction activities being undertaken for both projects at the same time.  
 
Since Tilbury2 will be substantially completed and operational, with environmental 
mitigation and enhancement areas established and in management and maintenance we 
remain of the view that the final Environmental Statement should consider fully the 
potential for both follow on effects of the timing of construction and potential disturbance 
in newly established environmental mitigation land.  
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Approach to Cumulative Effects Assessment and mitigation 
 
The PEIR considers both future baseline and cumulative effects with other projects.  The 
basic approach to the EIA is set out in Section 2 of the PEIR.   
 
It states at para. 2.3.5 that :- 
 
“The baseline for the assessment should represent the conditions that will exist in the 
absence of the proposed development at the time that the development is likely to be 
implemented. The anticipated start date for construction is 2021, with enabling works likely 
to occur in 2020.”  
 
It further states at para.  
 
“Consideration has been given to any likely changes between the time of survey and the 
future baseline for the construction and operation of the proposed development. In some 
cases, these changes may include the construction or operation of other planned 
developments in the area. Where such developments are built and operational at the time 
of writing and data collection, these have been considered to form part of the baseline 
environment. Where sufficient and robust information is available other future 
developments have been considered as part of the future baseline conditions.  In all other 
cases, planned future developments are considered within the assessment of cumulative 
effects.”  
 
The Tilbury2 application has progressed through the whole pre-application, application and 
examination process and the Examining Authority must report to the Secretary of State on 
or before 20 November 2018 and if submitted on that date the Secretary of State must 
make a decision on or before 20 February 2019.  
 
The TFGP PEIR notes that the submission of the TFGP application will be made in January 
2019.  It is likely that by acceptance (and certainly prior to Examination), the decision on 
Tilbury2 will have been made.  If in the unlikely event the decision was still to be made, all 
necessary detail of the Tilbury2 proposals is in any event available to the promoters of 
those schemes as already fully published on the Planning Inspectorate website project 
page for Tilbury2ii.   
 
 
Moreover, enabling works within the ecological mitigation area that forms part of the 
Tilbury2 scheme which immediately adjoins the TFGP site were granted planning 
permission separately by Thurrock Council (ref : 18/00448/FUL) and have been 
implemented.  These works include the creation of water vole habitat, an artificial badger 
sett and a number of reptile hibernacula.   
 
In accordance with the approach to the future baseline set out in the PEIR we consider 
that it would be preferable for Tilbury2 to be considered as part of that future baseline 
rather than a cumulative project such that the Tilbury2 proposals and the full mitigation 
package associated with the scheme – particularly the already constructed ecological 
mitigation works – are taken into account in designing the mitigation for TFGP and given 
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their due weight in the examination of the proposals and assessments of overall 
environmental effects.  
 
The PEIR takes account of Tilbury2 as a cumulative project and considers cumulative 
impacts with several other nearby major infrastructure projects that are in the process of 
applying for development consent. These include Tilbury2, the Lower Thames Crossing 
and the Tilbury Energy Centre.  Whilst PoTLL consider that it would be preferable for 
Tilbury2 to be taken into account as part of the future baseline, if Tilbury2 continues in the 
final ES to be treated as a cumulative project, it should fully take account of the 
environmental assessment, full examination submissions and documentation, detailed 
design of Tilbury2, any on-going monitoring, and the associated proposed mitigation and 
the statutory consultee responses to this information.   
 
We have some concerns that the cumulative effects assessment of the PEIR will need to 
be more detailed in the final ES, particularly as mitigation strategies are developed for 
TFGP.  We note that at the present time the Cumulative Effects Assessment (Chapter 16) 
reports that the impact to various receptors as a result of TFGP is negligible and would not 
change the significance of the cumulative effect.  It is further concluded that no further 
mitigation or monitoring measures are considered necessary, beyond those which have 
been adopted as part of the proposed development, or outlined in the topic chapters.   
 
We note, however, that the cumulative impact on the Thames Estuary and Marshes 
Special Protection Area has yet to be determined and will be reported in the ES once 
wintering bird surveys have been undertaken.   
 
Despite this assessment, PoTLL reserves its position on ecology as the TFGP proposals 
have the potential to interact with impacts from the Tilbury2 project mainly by virtue of 
geographical proximity and the interconnection between certain habitat and species 
receptors.  PoTLL’s consultant ecologists, Bioscan UK Limited have reviewed Chapter 9 
of the PEIR and remain concerned as to whether the interaction of ecological issues 
between TFGP and Tilbury2 has been fully assessed.  A note in this regard is annexed to 
this letter and should be taken as forming part of PoTLL’s representation.   
 
Scope of environmental topics 
 
It is noted and welcomed that the scope of environmental topics has now been extended 
to include Human Health (as a separate Health Chapter).  
 
It is noted that the destination of construction waste does not appear to be covered in the 
PEIR although it is not scoped out at Table 2.2 of Chapter 5.  The description of the scheme 
notes that the potential transport of clean soil from foundation excavations, if this cannot 
be accommodated on-site, has been allowed for in the estimation of construction traffic 
although it is not clear how or where this will be accommodated.  It is estimated that 
construction of the site will generate an average of 10 HGV deliveries per day (average of 
20 HGV movements per day) throughout the construction period. This could peak at 20 to 
30 HGV deliveries per day (40 to 60 HGV movements per day). This includes all associated 
construction activities including all deliveries and all removal of material / waste etc.  
However, the amount of waste is not quantified.   
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As established by the assessment undertaken by PoTLL for the Tilbury2 project, waste 
capacity in Thurrock is more limited than in the wider Essex area, and therefore the impacts 
on this capacity from TFGP, particularly when considered cumulatively with Tilbury2 and 
the Lower Thames Crossing could be significant.  This should be considered in the ES for 
TFGP.   
 
We trust the above comments will be taken into account in finalising the Environmental 
Statement for TFGP.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
MARTIN FRIEND 
DIRECTOR 
FOR VINCENT AND GORBING 
martin.friend@vincent-gorbing.co.uk 
 
Attachment : Comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR)  
Chapter 9: Ecology (September 2018) by Bioscan UK Limited 
 
 

i https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/TR030003/TR030003-
000990-Note%20on%20Thurrock%20Flexible%20Generation%20Plant.pdf  
ii https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-east/tilbury2/?ipcsection=overview  

                                                           

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/TR030003/TR030003-000990-Note%20on%20Thurrock%20Flexible%20Generation%20Plant.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/TR030003/TR030003-000990-Note%20on%20Thurrock%20Flexible%20Generation%20Plant.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/south-east/tilbury2/?ipcsection=overview


Application by Thurrock Power Ltd (the Applicant) for an Order granting Development 
Consent for the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant 

 
Comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR)  

Chapter 9: Ecology (September 2018) 
 

by Bioscan UK Limited, on behalf of Port of Tilbury London Limited 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant (TFGP) proposals are located immediately adjacent 
to the Tilbury2 scheme, and specifically they adjoin the areas that accommodate Tilbury2’s 
core on-site ecological compensation provision. The Applicant will need to ensure that the 
potential for impacts to arise cumulatively with Tilbury2 is assessed in detail, including 
careful consideration of potential adverse effects on the compensatory habitat and protected 
species provision put forward by Tilbury2. If the success of these mitigation and 
compensation measures is in any way compromised by the TFGP proposals, that would 
represent a significant cumulative impact. Matters that require particular consideration are 
set out below: 

Badger. As part of advance mitigation works for the Tilbury2 scheme, an artificial sett has 
been constructed1 within the adjacent parcel of land (zone Z), and the TFGP Applicant was 
advised at the scoping stage to consider this within their assessment. The proponents of the 
Tilbury2 scheme have recently undertaken survey work for badgers and have found clear 
badger territorial markings2 towards the centre of Walton Common (zone A – the main TFGP 
development site) which indicate that this is part of the home range of the Tilbury2 clan of 
badgers, and is likely to form an important foraging area for them. This would be lost to the 
TFGP proposals. The Applicant’s proposed compensatory Common Land provision has the 
potential to provide the Tilbury2 badger clan with alternative foraging habitat, but careful 
consideration needs to be given to phasing to ensure that this habitat is available in advance 
of any loss of habitat within Walton Common. Furthermore, whilst the Applicant’s primary 
location for alternative Common Land provision (zone F1) is ostensibly well located for the 
Tilbury2 badger social group, the Applicant must give consideration to how the badgers will 
be able to access this land both during construction and operation phases, and should 
ensure that continuity of access over the railway corridor can be maintained throughout. This 
also needs to be addressed in light of other cumulative considerations, including potentially 
the Lower Thames Crossing scheme. Note also that whilst the Applicant claims that there 
are no active setts within 30m of the site boundary, the proponents of the Tilbury2 scheme 
are aware of information to the contrary3 and advise the Applicant to revisit this assessment 
as part of the ES. 
 
Reptiles. As part of advance mitigation works for the Tilbury2 scheme, high quality reptile 
habitat has been created within zone Z, in a location which was intended to retain 
connectivity with wider reptile metapopulations, in particular with the ‘good’ populations using 
Walton Common (zone A) and the railway corridor. The TFGP Applicant proposes to create 
compensatory reptile habitat immediately north of the Tilbury2 site, within zone F1. By 
locating the compensatory habitat here, there is scope for connectivity to be maintained 
between this and the Tilbury2 reptile habitat creation area, as well as with the connected 
habitat within the Tilbury2 infrastructure corridor (zone Z). However, consideration will again 
need to be given to careful phasing of habitat provision, and maintenance of connectivity 
between these areas, in order to ensure that the viability of the on-site reptile mitigation 

                                                           
1 Refer to planning consent reference 18/00448/FUL 
2 Tracks and a latrine site comprising nine dung pits found November 2018. 
3 By reference to a confidential badger annex supporting planning application reference 17/00412/FUL. 



already provided by the Tilbury2 scheme is not compromised. The TFGP Applicant is also 
reminded of the point made during scoping4 that if zone F is intended to offer replacement 
common land it would logically be subject to grazing, the intensity of which would be beyond 
the control of the Applicant; and it therefore remains unclear how this would be compatible 
with the proposals for establishing compensatory reptile habitat here, nor with the proposals 
for scrub planting for birds.  
 
Clarity is also requested regarding the locations where the Applicant intends to use habitat 
clearance methods to displace reptiles (as per table 2.8, i.e. “Progressive and careful habitat 
clearance works such as the gradual strimming of above-ground vegetation such as 
brambles, rough grass and scrub, will be undertaken in select areas prior to construction, to 
deter reptiles from the working area where alternative habitat is available to them”), and 
confirmation is sought that this will not result in reptiles being unduly pushed into Tilbury2 
land. Whilst the compensatory habitat provided in zone Z by the proponents of the Tilbury2 
scheme is of high quality, there is a defined limit to its reptile carrying capacity, and TFGP 
must ensure that additional pressure is not put upon the Tilbury2 provision and the existing 
population of reptiles that it is required to support.  
 
Water voles. Similarly, connectivity is a consideration in respect of water voles. Approx. 
2.5km of new ditch habitat has been constructed as part of the Tillbury2 advance 
compensation works5 within the parcel of land west of the TFGP main site  (including zone 
Z). By choosing this location for the Tilbury2 ditch provision it was intended that connections 
would be maintained to existing colonies of water voles, such as those occupying zones A, 
B, C and I. It is not clear whether potential fragmentation effects arising from the TFGP 
proposals (in addition to the direct loss of water vole habitat), including via development of 
the access roads, have been considered by the TFGP Applicant, and reassurance is sought 
that this will be adequately assessed within the ES, and that TFGP will not generate adverse 
impacts on connectivity which could reduce the success of the compensatory habitat 
provision put forward by Tilbury2. 
 
Great crested newt. Great crested newt survey work undertaken to inform this project 
appears to have omitted the ponds at Buckland Farm, despite these being within 100m of 
areas C and D (i.e. land for the gas pipeline corridor and access road). Previous survey work 
recorded a medium size-class population of great crested newts occupying this complex of 
ponds6. It is recommended that the statement in Table 2.7, i.e. that “Surveys and desk study 
have confirmed GCN are not present within the study area” is revisited; and that the need for 
survey work is reviewed. The potential for impacts on this great crested newt population 
should be assessed as part of the application; and if impacts are identified, then 
consideration would need to be given to the suitability of the mitigation scheme provided.  
 
Invertebrates. It is noted that the invertebrate survey work undertaken has not been 
extended beyond Walton Common (zone A) despite the potential for invertebrate habitat to 
be affected elsewhere within and adjacent to the TFGP site boundaries. Cumulative impacts 
on invertebrates also remain to be properly assessed at the landscape scale (for example 
there has been no specific consideration of impacts arising cumulatively with the Tilbury 
Energy Centre). Clarity is also sought regarding the proposals to mitigate for the impacts 
identified, as the section within the PEIR which deals with ‘Further mitigation or 
enhancement’ for invertebrates (paragraphs 4.1.23-4.1.26) refers only to reptiles. 
 

                                                           
4 Tilbury2 Note on Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant, Annex 2.  Available from: 
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010092/EN010092-000089-
TFGP%20-%20Scoping%20Opinion.pdf  
5 Refer to planning consent reference 18/00448/FUL 
6 Refer to planning application to Thurrock Council by RWE (ref:12/00890/OUT). 

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010092/EN010092-000089-TFGP%20-%20Scoping%20Opinion.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/ipc/uploads/projects/EN010092/EN010092-000089-TFGP%20-%20Scoping%20Opinion.pdf


Cumulative Effects Assessment. The CEA relies heavily on the assumption that the Lower 
Thames Crossing (LTC) feeder/link road would generate larger potential cumulative impacts 
with Tilbury2 than TFGP would, and on the claim that this would effectively obviate any 
contribution from TFGP to, for example, effects on connectivity. Given that the link road is 
not an integral part of the LTC proposals and may not ultimately come forward as part of the 
LTC scheme, the TFGP Applicants are advised to reconsider the potential for cumulative 
effects with Tilbury2 (particularly as relates to habitat and species metapopulation 
fragmentation) in the absence of the LTC link. 
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Mr Andrew Troup     Our Ref: 49028 
Director 
Thurrock Power     
1st Floor 145 Kensington Church Street       
London   W8 7LP 

           

 
28th November 2018 
 
Dear Mr Troup 
 
Section 42 Consultation: Flexible Generation Power Plant in Thurrock 
 
Thank you for your consultation regarding the above development. Public Health 
England (PHE) welcomes the opportunity to comment on your proposals and 
preliminary environmental information report (PEIR) at this stage of the project.  

An opinion to the scoping document was provided by us to the Planning Inspectorate 
on the 17th October 2018. 

PHE exists to protect and improve the nation's health and wellbeing, and reduce 
health inequalities; these two organisational aims are reflected in the way we review 
and respond to Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) applications. 
The health of an individual or a population is the result of a complex interaction of a 
wide range of different determinants of health, from an individual’s genetic make-up, 
to lifestyles and behaviours, and the communities, local economy, built and natural 
environments to global ecosystem trends. All developments will have some effect on 
the determinants of health, which in turn will influence the health and wellbeing of the 
general population, vulnerable groups and individual people. Although assessing 

impacts on health beyond direct effects from for example emissions to air or road 
traffic incidents is complex, there is a need to ensure a proportionate assessment 
focused on an application’s significant effects. 

PHE has considered the submitted documentation and at this point has a number of 
specific observations and comments.  

Contribution from PHE Centre for Radiation, Chemical and Environmental 
Hazards (CRCE) 
 
As highlighted in the PIER there are a number of residential developments in varying 
stages of the planning process close to the development site. We would welcome 
the addition of these sites to the list of sensitive receptors used to estimate 



operational impacts to local air quality (i.e. nitrogen dioxide (NO2)), with cumulative 
impacts from other developments in the area.  

Construction activities generate dust which should be addressed in a mitigation plan. 
Reducing public exposures to non-threshold pollutants (such as particulate matter 
and NO2) below air quality standards has potential public health benefits. We support 
approaches which minimise or mitigate public exposure to non-threshold air 
pollutants, address inequalities (in exposure), and maximise co-benefits (such as 
physical exercise) and encourage their consideration during development design, 
environmental and health impact assessment, and development consent. 

Human Health and Wellbeing  
 
Availability and Access to Green Space 
 
Availability of and access to safe open green space is associated with increased 
physical activity across a variety of behaviours, social connectedness, childhood 
development, reduced risk of overweight and obesity and improved physical and 
mental health outcomes. While the quantity of green space in a neighbourhood helps 
to promote physical activity and is beneficial to physical health, e.g. lower rates of 
mortality from cardiovascular disease and respiratory disease in men, the availability 
of green environments is likely to contribute more to mental health than to physical 
health: the prevalence of some disease clusters, particularly anxiety and depression, 
is lower in living environments which have more green space within a 1-km radius.  
The proximity, size, type, quality, distribution, density and context of green space are 
also important factors. Quality of green space may be a better predictor of health 
than quantity, and any type of green space in a neighbourhood does not necessarily 
act as a venue for, or will encourage, physical activity. 'Walkable' green 
environments are important for better health, and streetscape greenery is as strongly 
related to self-reported health as green areas. Residents in deprived areas are more 
likely to perceive access to green space as difficult, to report poorer safety, to visit 
the green space less frequently and to have lower levels of physical activity. The 
benefits to health and wellbeing of blue space include lower psychological distress. " 
 
We note that table 2.6 of Chapter 13: Human Health assessment scopes out access 
to key public services, transport or use of open space for recreation and physical 
activity during both the development and operational phases due “the majority of the 
development site being agricultural land.” 
 
There is however an area of common land impacted by this development. Chapter 
13, table 2.7 : designed in measures  notes that “Any common land or access to land 
which is lost as a result of the proposed development would be replaced to ensure 
that there are no adverse impacts”. This is reinforced by paragraph 4.9.7 of the non-
technical summary which states “The exchange Common Land provided would 
maintain this resource for public access, with a slight improvement to accessibility as 
crossing the railway is no longer needed. No adverse effect on health and wellbeing 
due to changes in green space available for exercise and recreation is predicted.”  
 
Recommendation 
 



Given the apparent contradiction between tables 2.6 and 2.7 of chapter 13 we 
request that details of access to, and potential disruption of, public footpaths, 
bridleways, common land or other green space be further clarified in subsequent 
submissions. This should include details of any effects and any proposed mitigation. 
Where common land or access to land is replaced, it should be demonstrated that 
the replacement land is comparable, of good quality and that overall access to any 
green space is not adversely affected. 
 
Mental health / community engagement 
 
Mental health / community engagement – the scoping report does not identify details 
of engagement prior to and during the construction phase and impacts on mental 

health of the development. We welcome the inclusion of local community liaison in 
the Code of Construction Practice (CoCP). Paragraph 2.3.1 and 2.3.2 of that 
document contain outline information on the proposed liaison activities but we 
recommend that the method of community liaison be further clarified prior to the next 
stage of consultation.   
 
Engagement with local communities that are affected can be important in mitigating 
distress and the impacts on mental health and wellbeing. Mental well-being is 
fundamental to achieving a healthy, resilient and thriving population. It underpins 
healthy lifestyles, physical health, educational attainment, employment and 
productivity, relationships, community safety and cohesion and quality of life. Good 
community engagement can assist with the over-arching protective factors, which 
are: 
• Enhancing control 
• Increasing resilience and community assets 
• Facilitating participation and promoting inclusion 
 
Recommendation 
 
The ES should ensure adequate consultation with local communities and the local 
public health / health care system during the development of the Environmental 
Statement for the assessment of baselines and potential impacts at local level on 
mental health. 

 
If you require any clarification on the above points or wish to discuss any particular 
issues, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
 
On behalf of Public Health England 
 
nsipconsultations@phe.gov.uk 
Please mark any correspondence for the attention of National Infrastructure Planning 
Administration. 

mailto:NSIPconsultations@phe.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.stockmarketwatcher.co.uk/royal-mail-reports-rise-in-profits/&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=PEEYVIiFMuaf7AaAoYDoBw&ved=0CBgQ9QEwAQ&usg=AFQjCNHIDXQwsJGvd5fdo4rVsiu4Rpf83A
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contact

From:

Sent: 16 November 2018 09:45

To: contact

Subject: TWE Generation UK Plc

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

PROPOSAL TO BUILD A GAS FIRED ELECTRICITY GENERATING POWER STATION AND BATTERY STORAGE FACILITY ON TILBURY MARSHES – RWE GENERATION UK, 

SECTION 42 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

 

RWE Generation UK Plc (RWE) writes in response to Thurrock Power’s Section 42 consultation on its proposed DCO application for a gas fired power station and battery 

storage facility.  RWE is an Interested Party by virtue of its retained property and operational interest on the Tilbury Power Station site which adjoins the proposed 

development.  RWE is also a statutory undertaker as it holds an electricity generation licence under section 6(1) (a) Electricity Act 1989. 

 

RWE has reviewed the Preliminary Environmental Information Report which forms part of the consultation material and it has no comment to make at this time.  However, 

RWE reserves its right to make comments, if necessary, as the development scheme evolves during the pre-submission and examination process. 

 

Kind Regards 

 

Matthew Trigg  

Development Planning Manager  

RWE Generation UK plc 

Electron  

Windmill Hill Business Park  

Whitehill Way  

Swindon  

SN5 6PB  

tel:   01793 893184  
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----------------------------------------------------------------  

This e-mail is provided for general information purposes only and does not constitute investment or transactional advice. For the avoidance of doubt the contents of this e-

mail are subject to contract and will not constitute a legally binding contract. 

 

The information contained in this e-mail is private and confidential. If you have received this message in error or you have come into possession of it and are not an 

addressee, you must not use, copy, disclose or take any action as a result of the information contained in or attached to it. 

 

If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify postmaster@npower.com and delete it immediately and permanently remove it from your system. 

 

None of the companies named below nor any other company in their respective groups on whose behalf this e-mail is sent accept any responsibility for losses or damage as 

a result of any viruses and it is your responsibility to check attachments (if any) for viruses. 

 

This e-mail may be sent on behalf of a member of these RWE UK group companies: 

Innogy Business Services UK Limited, company number 6052966 

Innogy Renewables UK Holdings Limited, company number 6451278 

Innogy Renewables UK Limited, company number 2550622 

Npower Group Limited, company number 8241182 

Npower Limited, company number 3653277 

RWE Generation UK plc, company number 3892782 

RWE Technology UK Limited, company number 7056922 

 

Registered Office: Windmill Hill Business Park, Whitehill Way, Swindon, Wiltshire SN5 6PB, Registered in England and Wales.  
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contact

From: NRSWA <nrswa.nrswa@sky.uk>

Sent: 28 December 2018 11:20

To: contact

Subject: Flexible Generation PowerPlant in Thurrock

Attachments: Updated Sky Details.pdf

 

 

SKY Telecommunicatio

70 Buck

Tel: 0207

Fax

email:

 

Further to your recent enquiry, the following Sky route(s) may be indirectly affected by your proposed works: 

DLIS-Telehouse North - Ipswich 

The SKY route(s) is indirectly affected as we only lease telecoms infrastructure from Interoute who own and are responsible for the maintenance or diversion thereo

information or detailed plans for this area, please contact the Interoute Enquiry Team, by email: Interoute.enquiries@plancast.co.uk. 

 

Please note that if our apparatus is deemed to be affected by your proposal and requires relocation or diversion in any way, you will need to contact SKY to provide e

per NRSWA Diversionary Works process. 

 

     Regards 
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Kind Regards, 

 

Tabitha Harris 

NRSWA Administrator  

Tech UK Operations 

 

NRSWA@sky.uk 

 

 
70 Buckingham Avenue 

Slough 

SL1 4PN 

 

 
 

Information in this email including any attachments may be privileged, confidential and is intended exclusively for the addressee. The views expressed may not be official 

policy, but the personal views of the originator. If you have received it in error, please notify the sender by return e-mail and delete it from your system. You should not 

reproduce, distribute, store, retransmit, use or disclose its contents to anyone. Please note we reserve the right to monitor all e-mail communication through our internal 

and external networks. SKY and the SKY marks are trademarks of Sky Limited and Sky International AG and are used under licence.  
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Sky UK Limited (Registration No. 2906991), Sky-In-Home Service Limited (Registration No. 2067075), Sky Subscribers Services Limited (Registration No. 2340150) and Sky CP 

Limited (Registration No. 9513259) are direct or indirect subsidiaries of Sky Limited (Registration No. 2247735). All of the companies mentioned in this paragraph are 

incorporated in England and Wales and share the same registered office at Grant Way, Isleworth, Middlesex TW7 5QD  
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contact

From: Neale Timothy 

Sent: 30 November 2018 16:22

To: contact

Cc: Spatial Planning

Subject: RE: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant Section 42 Consultation

FAO Kirsty Cassie, 

 

Thanks for following up. 

 

These comments represent the views of Transport for London officers and are made on a “without prejudice” basis. They should not be taken to represent an indication of 

any subsequent Mayoral decision in relation to a planning application based on the proposed scheme. These comments also do not necessarily represent the views of the 

Greater London Authority who should be consulted separately. 

 

Given the context of the site and our understanding of the proposals, TfL are content that any local or strategic transport matters are picked up by the relevant statutory 

local highway authorities, rail authorities and local authorities.  If through further assessment it is considered that there would be a significant impact on the strategic 

transport network within the GLA boundary we would be pleased to discuss further, and provide any advice.  

 

TfL are engaged in more detail in ongoing work for the Lower Thames Crossing, and we note that there is a significant overlap of the red line boundaries.  We presume that 

you are each aware of the other scheme, and that are designed to be compatible.  

 

As such please continue to update to the spatialplanning@tfl.gov.uk e-mail address as the scheme proceeds and we can assess if we need to respond in any detail. 

 

Regards 

 

Tim Neale | Principal Planner 
Spatial Planning (East) | City Planning 
Phone: 020 3054 7036 (Auto 87036)  
Level 9 (9B5), 5 Endeavour Square, Westfield Avenue, Stratford E20 1JN   

  
  
We have recently made changes to our pre-application service and charges, and introduced a new Initial Screening process. For more info please visit: https://tfl.gov.uk/info-

for/urban-planning-and-construction/planning-applications/pre-application-services 
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From: contact [mailto:contact@thurrockpower.co.uk]  

Sent: 22 November 2018 11:21 
To: Spatial Planning 

Subject: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant Section 42 Consultation 

 

To whom this concerns, 

  

You are receiving this email to follow up on the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant consultation under section 42 0f the Planning Act 2008. A consultation letter was sent to 

you in advance of the formal consultation period, which ran from 16th October to 14th November 2018, and we are following up with you as an organisation that has not 

yet provided feedback on our development proposals. We are keen to engage with you and should be grateful if you would confirm receipt of our original letter and 

indicate whether you are intending to respond/provide feedback. If you would like to discuss any aspect of the proposed development or have any questions, please do not 

hesitate to contact us by email (contact@thurrockpower.co.uk) or by telephone (0207 1860580). 

  

We look forward to hearing from you.  

  

Kind regards, 

  

Kirsty 

Kirsty Cassie 
Thurrock Power Limited 
1st Floor | 145 Kensington Church Street 
London  | W8 7LP 
Tel: 02071860580 
Email: contact@thurrockpower.co.uk 
Website: www.thurrockpower.co.uk 

 
  

  

 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, 
you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a 
safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 
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Click here to report this email as SPAM. 

 

 

 

*********************************************************************************** 

The contents of this e-mail and any attached files are confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately at 

postmaster@tfl.gov.uk and remove it from your system. If received in error, please do not use, disseminate, forward, print or copy this email or its content. 

Transport for London excludes any warranty and any liability as to the quality or accuracy of the contents of this email and any attached files.  

  

Transport for London is a statutory corporation whose principal office is at 55 Broadway, London, SW1H 0DB. Further information about Transport for 

London’s subsidiary companies can be found on the following link: http://www.tfl.gov.uk/corporate/about-tfl/ 

  

Although TfL have scanned this email (including attachments) for viruses, recipients are advised to carry out their own virus check before opening any 

attachments, as TfL accepts no liability for any loss, or damage which may be caused by viruses. 

*********************************************************************************** 

  



18/01649/SCO 

Ecology 

Thurrock Council notes that the revised scheme no longer includes the cooling water option. 

This is welcomed as it will reduce the effects of the scheme on the saltmarsh habitats and 

other ecological features. 

Thurrock council is not aware of any records of otter, dormice or white-clawed crayfish 

being present in the vicinity or of any suitable habitat to support these features.  The Essex 

Field Club records would have been helpful in confirming this.  The council is pleased to see 

that their records will be used in the ES  

The reports detail the proposed mitigation measures for the various species and habitats 

that would be affected by the proposals.  In some cases the assessment concludes that the 

residual effects of the mitigation could be beneficial (albeit at a minor level).  The 

assessment does not however identify measures that could deliver biodiversity net gain as 

supported in the NPPF 2018.  Opportunities to deliver such gains should be detailed in the 

emerging ES.   

The council previously stated that it wanted to see dialogue between the adjoining DCO 

schemes to help deliver linkages between the different mitigation schemes to ensure that 

connectivity is maximised.  The Council is pleased to see that the applicant is willing to 

explore opportunities although it is noted that they do not intend to lead on this.  

(Chris do you think that this is something that the council could offer to facilitate or shall we 

leave it to those with the resources?!) 

Landscape 

The Council has previously agreed the general approach and key viewpoint receptors. 

The council would welcome the opportunity to discuss the emerging landscape mitigation 

strategy which is to form part of the ES.   

Table 2.7 indicates that the applicant would be willing to support measures to restore 

hedgerows local to the scheme not directly affected by the development.  This is welcomed 

however it will be necessary for more detail to be provided as to the area where this is 

proposed, how it relates to the DCO schemes in the vicinity and how it will be delivered and 

maintained.  It will be necessary to determine if these measures will be included within the 

redline boundary or delivered via another mechanism e.g. s106.   

The main adverse visual effects arising from the main development site will be experienced 

around the West Tilbury area.  It is agreed that the effects are less likely to be significant 



beyond this area.  The Cumulative Wire Lines do show how the effects of the separate DCO 

schemes will start to have significant effects of wider views. 

The council is concerned however about the landscape and visual effects caused by the 

construction routes.  For example the route running north-south would directly affect West 

Tilbury Conservation Area. 



I N T E R D E P A R T M E N T A L  M E M O R A N D U M  
 

 

SUBJECT Comments required for the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) 
for a future NSIP/DCO for the construction, operation and decommissioning of a gas fired 
flexible electricity generation plant and battery storage facility, known as the Thurrock 
Flexible Generation Plant. 
Location: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant Fort Road Tilbury Essex 
 
 
Air quality Statement (Dean Page Air Quality Officer) 
 
The Preliminary Environmental Impact Assessment (PEIR) for air quality has taken a conservative 
approach in determining the impact of the proposed Generation Plant using worst case operation in 
terms of its operating capacity/ emissions in the dispersion modelling. The assessment has used a 
conservative based background estimation in the modelling assuming that there will be no 
improvement in background concentrations once operational.  
 
In addition the assessment has considered the joint cumulative impact of additional processes or 
schemes which contribute to emissions i.e. Lower Thames Crossing, Tilbury Energy Centre, 
Tilbury2 Port Expansion and Tilbury Green Power. 
 
Various Scenarios have been undertaken which ultimately incorporate all of the above which 
represent an end case scenario which is deemed “Worst Case Scenario”. In this scenario the overall 
long-term impact at modelled receptors shows that for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) there will be five 
moderate adverse impacts at Fort Road, Sandhurst Road, Walnut Tree Farm, the School along 
Calcutta Road and at R9 on Dock Road. However all of these fall below Air Quality Assessment 
Level (AQAL). The overall Process Contribution (PC) at each of these receptors varies, the worst 
PC is at Walnut Tree Farm at 4.2 ug/m-3, the cumulative Process Environmental Contribution is 23.8 
ug/m-3, however this is well below the 40 ug/m-3 AQAL, so this is unlikely to be an issue. 
 
The highest PEC is found at the School site along Calcutta Road at 38 ug/m-3 classed as a 
moderate impact descriptor for the PEC. This accounts for 95% of the PEC as % of the AQAL. The 
PC here accounts for 1.2 ug/m-3, and has a slight impact descriptor from the PC, and hence is not 
significant overall. 
 
Overall I am satisfied that the proposed development will not have a significant impact in terms of air 
quality, none of the modelled receptors within Thurrock are above the air quality objectives as a 
result of the operational side of development or the cumulatively assessed processes and schemes. 
The assessment has adopted a conservative approach in its modelling assuming worst case 
emissions from all activities, the likely impact will not be as high as those shown in the assessment. 
On this basis I have no air quality concerns for this proposed development. 
 
Section 2.2 code of construction practice 
 
Currently no adverse comments regarding this document It is noted that an updated CoCP will 
accompany the Environmental Statement (ES) ( section 1,3,1) further comment can be made if 
required. 
 
The proposed hours of construction are acceptable. 

From: Environmental Protection Team To: Planning, Transportation & Public 
Protection Department Place Directorate 

TEL: 01375 652096 FAO     Chris Purvis 
MY REF: CDP   18/28588/PLACON  
DATE: 12/12/18 YOUR REF 18/01649/SCO 



 
Construction noise 
 
Appendix 11.3 Construction noise assessment methodology and results is not accessible from the 
website at the time of writing and cannot be commented on at this stage 
 
Noise - -M Gentry EHO. 
 
I have reviewed the noise chapter by RPS and the relevant noise appendices (that were available at 
the time of review) and the Volume 4 summaries of the Inter Related, cumulative and residual 
effects respectively. 
 
The chapter and appendices covers all the necessary areas of noise impact in a satisfactory and 
comprehensive manner and as such I have no adverse comments to make. However I would like 
the opportunity to review the Construction noise assessment Appendix 11.3 mentioned above. 
Appendix 11.5 “Standards and Guidance Relevant to Noise and Vibration” is also inaccessible at 
this time, but is unlikely to contain any information of which I am unaware. 
 
 
             

 
 
Thurrock Borough Council 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Protection Team 
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Malik, Aneeqa

From: Suds <Suds@essex.gov.uk>

Sent: 15 November 2018 11:43

To: Development.Management

Subject: RE: Planning Application Consultation. 18/01649/SCO

Categories: Orange Category

Good Afternoon, 
 
The scope of any flood risk assessment and drainage strategy should be in line with the following 
documents: 
 
•           Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems 
•           Essex County Council’s (ECC’s) adopted Sustainable Drainage Systems Design Guide 
•           The CIRIA SUDS Manual (C753) 
•           BS8582 Code of practice for surface water management for development sites. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
Richard Horswill 
Development and Flood Risk Officer 
Sustainability and Resilience 
Waste and Environment 
 
Essex County Council | E3 County Hall | Chelmsford | CM1 1QH 
 
 
 

From: dm@thurrock.gov.uk [mailto:dm@thurrock.gov.uk]  

Sent: 15 November 2018 11:19 
To: Suds 

Subject: Planning Application Consultation. 18/01649/SCO 

 

Planning consultation please see attached application 18/01649/SCO, - Chris Purvis - UNCLASSIFIED  

Disclaimer 

The information in this e-mail and any attachment(s) are intended to be confidential and may be legally privileged. Access to 
and use of its content by anyone else other than the addressee(s) may be unlawful and will not be recognised by Thurrock 
Council for business purposes. If you have received this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it and 
do not copy it to anyone else. Thurrock Council cannot accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this 
message as it has been transmitted over a public network. 
 
Any opinions expressed in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily reflect the opinions of Thurrock Council. 
 
Any attachment(s) to this message has been checked for viruses, but please rely on your own virus checker and procedures. 
 
Senders and recipients of e-mail should be aware that under the UK Data Protection and Freedom of Information legislation 
these contents may have to be disclosed in response to a request. 
 
All e-mail sent to or from this address will be processed by Thurrock Council's corporate e-mail system and may be subject to 
scrutiny by someone other than the addressee. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an 
innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated 
data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 
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This email (including any attachments) is intended only for the recipient(s) named above. It may contain 

confidential or privileged information and should not be read, copied or otherwise used by any other person 

unless express permission is given. If you are not a named recipient, please contact the sender and delete the 

email from your system. The contact details of the sender and recipients constitute personal data. These 

along with any other personal data in the email (including any attachments) must be handled in accordance 

with the Data Protection Act 2018. It is the recipient's responsibility to ensure that appropriate measures are 

in place to check for software viruses.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chris Purvis 
Development Management  
Thurrock Council 
Civic Offices 
New Road 
Grays 
Essex 
RM17 6SL 
 

Our ref:  
Date:  5th December 2018 
  
  

Specialist Archaeological Advice 
Dear Chris 
 
18/01649/SCO  : Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant, Fort Road, Tilbury 
 
The Historic Environment Advisor to Thurrock Council has identified the above 
scoping application on the weekly list.  
 
Following the meeting at Thurrock’s offices in November with the applicants and 
Historic England there was agreement that a detailed assessment of the cultural 
heritage will be required which will need to include an integrated assessment of the 
standing buildings, the conservation area, the impact on the scheduled monuments 
and the below ground archaeological deposits along with the setting of all the 
heritage assets impacted.   
 
The proposed development will continue to erode the setting of the scheduled 
monuments both on the coast and that further inland at West Tilbury.  The direct 
impact of the development on below ground archaeological deposits will need to be 
defined, especially in the area of the proposed power plant, its associated 
construction road and pipeline corridor.  
 
Continued joint discussions with the archaeological consultants, Historic England and 
ourselves will be required to obtain a detailed understanding of the impact of the 
proposed development on the historic environment assets within the area of the 
development.  
 
If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 



Yours sincerely 

Richard Havis 
Principal Historic Environment Advisor 
 
Telephone: 03330 136849 
Email:   
 
 
NOTE : This letter is advisory and should only be considered as the opinion formed by specialist staff 
in relation to this particular matter 



    Civic Offices, New Road, Grays 
 Essex RM17 6SL 

 
  
 

Chris Purvis 
Planning and Growth Team 
Thurrock Council Offices 
New Road  
Grays 
Essex RM17 6SL 
Monday 10th December 2018.               
 
 
Dear Chris, 
 
R.E. – 18/01649/SCO – Public Health comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information 
Report on the development of the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant, Tilbury, Essex.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
Thank for you consulting Thurrock Council’s Public Health Team on the above PEIR.  
 
With regards to this PEIR report and any subsequent planning application that will be informed by 
this consultation, it is felt important that consideration is paid to the potential human health impacts 
in respect of this proposed development. This relates to the health and wellbeing of any person(s) 
employed both during construction and operational stages, local residents living in communities 
within close proximity to the proposed development and the wider community as a whole where 
impacts may be felt.  
 
Public Health is pleased to see that there is a chapter that has been developed around human Health 
and that our previous responses have been acknowledged within this. In addition to our original EIA 
comments we would like to add the following points; 
 
Based on the information provided in the PEIR report document there were a some areas identified 
that require further clarification although some of these issues have been touched upon within the 
PEIR.  
 
The impacts are considered based on their magnitude, duration and reversibility.  
 
Table 2.1 heath determinants survey 

 Please include information around the method, frequency and reporting of findings of the 

assessment, will they be included in the air quality assessment and noise assessment? 

 

 

2.3 Baseline Study 

Local communities and baseline data collection: 

Assessment methodology 

Decommissioning phase – will need to account for any new communities and infrastructure that has 

emerged during the operational timeframe (est. 35 years).  



    Civic Offices, New Road, Grays 
 Essex RM17 6SL 

 
While the methodology selected appears sound and the scope of it covers everything that we would 

expect to see in relation to Human Health, we have some concerns on the level of granularity of the 

assessment in terms of the specific community of Tilbury that will be most affected.  We would like 

to see that ward level data is drawn upon in making the assessment and would request that this 

ward level data be included. 

We are concerned that due to the number of impacts combined and the health inequalities 

observed in residents living in Tilbury, that even small changes in the environment could potentially 

have a further additional detrimental impact on the health outcomes for these residents.   The use 

of specific Ward level data would enable a better understanding of the overall impact to ensure 

mitigation is proportionate and sufficient for the population.  

It is also not clear from the document that the local community in Tilbury have been consulted and 

what their concerns might be in relation to this development around their health and well-being, 

and how this has been fed into the assessments made in this report. We request that this is clarified. 

Urban Greening and Landscaping – further details  

Visually pleasing environments are beneficial for mental health and wellbeing and can support 

people to spend more time outside being physically active, feel safe in their local communities, 

enhance a sense of pride of their local area and increase social cohesion.   

Noise Exposure 

 
It is stated that there is the possibility of piling and dredging noise which may affect the population 
of Tilbury during construction.  A cumulative assessment of current noise levels and modelled noise 
levels from this and other new and emerging developments should be undertaken and used as part 
of the noise impact assessment.  Public Health would like to see the noise impact assessment and 
strategies to alleviate this, as ongoing noise at a significant level can have a detrimental impact on 
mental health. The high health needs of the Tilbury population could lead to exacerbation of existing 
conditions such as circulatory disease etc. 
 
The document states construction activities would take place during day time hours only; please 

clarify hours and days. 

 
We hope that our above comments will be reviewed and included as deemed appropriate within the 
PEIR response and any subsequent planning application. If you wish to discuss any of the items 
raised within this  
 
Yours Sincerely,  
 
 
Sue Bradish 
Public Health Commissioning Manager 
 



Highways Response 
 

To:-    Development Management 

 
 

From:    Highways Development Control    
 

This matter is being dealt with by: Steven Lines 
 

Date:    20th December 2018 

Application No.   18/01649/SCO   

Address:  Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant, Fort Road, Tilbury, Essex,  

Proposal:  Comments required for the Preliminary Environmental 

Information Report (PEIR) for a future NSIP/DCO for the 

construction, operation and decommissioning of a gas fired 

flexible electricity generation plant and battery storage facility, 

known as the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Scoping App Response 
 
 
The Transport Assessment submitted as part of the PIER appears to cover all of the points 
raised by the Highways Response to the previous Scoping Submission (18/4044/SCO)  
 
 
The Haul road put forward (if achievable) would be the preferred construction route access 
for the site as it keeps traffic away from residential areas and off the local road network. 
 
Highways England will need to be consulted with regards to proposals affecting their part 
of the highway network. 
      
Regards: Steven Lines 
Date:  20th December 2018 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
11 January 2019 

 
Dear Matthew Jericho, 
 
RE: RESPONSE REQUIRED: Proposed Flexible Generation Power Plant in Thurrock 
 
This letter contains input from Place Services on the Thurrock Flexible Generation Power 
Plant PIER Consultation. 
 
<Historic Environment> – <Richard Havis> 31/12/2018 
 
General Comments: A detailed assessment of the cultural heritage will be required which 
will need to include an integrated assessment of the standing buildings, conservation 
areas, scheduled monuments and the below ground archaeological deposits along with the 
setting of all the heritage assets impacted.   
 
The proposed development will continue to erode the setting of the scheduled monuments 
both on the coast and that further inland at West Tilbury.  The direct impact of the 
development on below ground archaeological deposits will need to be defined, especially in 
the area of the proposed power plant, its associated construction road and pipeline 
corridor.  
 
Continued joint discussions with the archaeological consultants, Historic England and 
Place Services representing both ECC and Thurrock Council will be required to obtain a 
detailed understanding of the impact of the proposed development on the historic 
environment assets within the area of the development.  
 
 
Section Specific Comments:  
 
The following table provides more specific comments by section: 

 

Section Comment 

4.3.6 

The presence of six scheduled monuments within a relatively close distance means that a 

detailed assessment of the setting of these monuments will be required for this proposal.  The 

setting of  sites such as Tilbury Fort  are already under threat from the industrial development  of 

this area.   

4.3.8 This section is wrong in that there is high potential for surviving coastal industries dating back to 

the Late Iron Age and Roman periods.  Excavation at the London Gateway development 



 

 

Section Comment 

identified extensive salt making sites on the marshland extending over many hectares.  An 

appropriate programme of archaeological investigation will be required to assess the site and its 

associated features such as the pipeline  routes, to identify the importance and extent of any 

surviving archaeological deposits which will be affected by the development.  

4.3.10 

The present demolition of Tilbury power station will create a significant improvement to the setting 

of Tilbury Fort and this is due to be completed in the near future.  This section should review the 

impact in light of the loss of the Tilbury Power Station site.  

 

It is unclear whether this section is complete.  There is no mention on the visual impact this 

development will have on the Scheduled Monument, conservation area and listed buildings within 

West Tilbury whose setting will be impacted by the development of this site.  

 
 

<Landscape> – <Anne Westover> 10/01/2019 
 
Section Specific Comments:  
 

The following table provides more specific comments by section: 
 
Further to my scoping response I welcome the additional viewpoints selected and also the 
provision of photograph and wireframe illustrations for these.  
 
I have now reviewed elements of the PEIR Summary and Chapter 6 Landscape and Visual 
Resources.   

 

Section Comment 

Page 17 Table 1.3 

I support the comment made by the Public Health commissioning manager TBC in the scoping 

response and summarised within the PEIR: 

‘We would also like, as part of the socio-economic and amenity element, to touch on the 
Landscape and visual effects LVIA that is to be undertaken and suggest that consideration be 
paid to the potentially negative effects to emotional 
wellbeing and potential decrease in civic pride that could be felt by Thurrock residents through 
bad visual planning, as well as potential economic effects on the locality by the negativity of 
visitors from outside the borough to the historical 
sites and SSI areas. It is suggested that consultation with other developments in agreeing a 
plan around greening, colours and planting to be undertaken.’ 

I note that Table 2.7 provided gives little detail around these matters at present but this should be 

in considerable detail for the EIA submission.  



 

 

Section Comment 

 

Page 13 Table 1.3  The boundary of the DCO should not prohibit necessary landscape mitigation  

Page 30 

Reference to lighting on page 30: 

‘Directional, motion-activated security lighting used at main development 
site (Zone A) and above ground installation for gas connection (Zone E) 
 
Reasonable maximum potential night-time visual impact. As the flexible generation 
plant is not manned on-site during normal operation, full-time lighting at night is not required’. 

I welcome this approach however it seems unlikely that some form of lighting for the main site will 

not be required particularly given the proposed engine stack heights 

Lighting proposals and impacts for all aspects of the development in terms of the construction 

and operational development phases will need to be clearly set out within the EIA. 

Page 30 

The retained access road / track through Zone C is likely to have visual impact, in addition the 

possible retention of the temporary access road through Zone J.  This possible retention of the 

route is referred to in Table 2.6.  These will need to be designed to minimise both physical and 

visual impact with appropriate landscape mitigation/enhancement measures incorporated.  The 

LVIA will need to assess impact, both in short and longer term and propose suitable 

mitigation/landscape enhancement, there may be locations (Zone J is more restricted) where this 

will need to be outside the DCO boundary and therefore off-site.  Proposals such as hedgerow, 

and tree planting, may be appropriate.  

Page 31 

Para 2.8   I support the broad outline provided in terms of landscape mitigation ‘Landscape 

scheme and Management Plan’.  However there is little information provided to date on this 

matter.  Securing the long term management of landscape elements (and ecological 

management) both within and off-site will need to be secured via appropriate legal agreements.  

Again there is an opportunity for this to be dealt with in conjunction with other 

developments/developers for the Port and Tilbury energy centre particularly in respect of the 

cumulative landscape impacts and mitigation measures.   

Page 32 Current 

baseline and zones 

Installations at Zone E will need to be presented and evaluated in terms of local impact.  

Landscape mitigation, enhancement/restoration measures are likely to be needed at Zones D 

and E.  

I note the reference to Zone F1, the exchange common land, and the zone where landscape 

mitigation could be provided.  Elsewhere this is described as the ‘primary area for landscape 

mitigation’.   This is of concern.  

The scheme of landscape mitigation should deal with the adverse impacts arising from the 



 

 

Section Comment 

various elements and phases of the development experienced by receptors over a wider area.  

Zone F1 may be suitable for some aspects of mitigation, in certain views and subject to other 

land uses proposed and ecological considerations.   

However other adverse impacts will need to be dealt with appropriately including provision for 

landscape mitigation within/bounding the main construction zone A.   

Page 72 

 

Para 6.3.1 states that:  

‘Fieldwork based on the responses received in the Scoping Opinion will be completed. 

This will include winter photography from selected viewpoints, after the leaves have 

fallen from the trees. Following consultation on the PEIR any additional photography 

will be taken at the same time. This information will be analysed and incorporated into 

the assessment. The night time baseline will be established. Following these further 

studies and in consultation with other specialists, landscape mitigation proposals will 

be produced, and will form part of an outline Landscape Scheme and Management Plan.’ 

Table 6.1 states under ‘proposed monitoring’: 

Five year defects 
liability period as part 
of a Landscape 
Scheme and 
Management Plan to be produced.  
 

Depending on the form and timescale for the landscape and ecological management plan this 

may not be a sufficient timescale.  The DLP may be sufficient in terms of the contractual 

(landscape) responsibilities only but long term management proposals will need to ensure they 

encapsulate successful establishment i.e. minimum 20 years.  

I support the approach outlined in 6.3.1.  However I reiterate my comments at scoping stage 4
th
 

September:   

Mitigation measures will need to be identified and these should be designed to accord with the 
key characteristics and qualities of the neighbouring landscape character areas.  The Tilbury 
urban area, West Tilbury, Tilbury Marshes and Chadwell escarpment LCA areas are likely to 
experience the most significant visual impacts and measures to mitigate impacts and reinforce 
the landscape condition should be designed accordingly.  
 
Where the identified landscape measures fall outside the DCO boundary line then specific 
agreements to ensure that works are secured, delivered (funded and implemented) and 
managed appropriately will need to be formulated.   
 
We (that is ECC) have previously suggested that a Landscape Mitigation Fund be set up and 
funded from the various major developments within the area and used to fund landscape 
mitigation projects and enable management measures/projects to be undertaken.   



 

 

Section Comment 

 

 I have not commented on the current findings of the LVIA 

 

The viewpoint photographs and character photographs are of excellent quality and will assist 
with the assessment process. I note the commentary around further updates to take into 
account winter months/no foliage. 

 

The wireline images are also excellent both for the FGP alone and the cumulative wireframes.  
I advise that these also be labled in terms of location (not just number) to enable quick 
reference without having to refer to the location map.  This has been done for the viewpoint 
and character photographs and is immensely helpful.    

Page 21 Outline 

ecological 

management plan 

This states that: 
 
8.2.2 A detailed landscape and ecology management plan would be produced that includes 
management regimes for ecological habitats and features as given on the indicative mitigation 
plan (Figure 4.1).   I note that the proposals extend to F1, I and F2 only.  

 
The landscape and ecological management plan and mitigation proposals should be worked up 
together as a joint document.  Proposals should also incorporate all the wider landscape 
mitigation measures for the development zones and in particular zones A, C where permanent 
construction elements are proposed and Zone I where the construction laydown zone is likely to 
have significant impacts.   
 

 
 
 
 
If you have any queries regarding the information contained in this letter please do not hesitate to 
contact Place Services. 
 
Regards, 
 

Jonathan Crane 
Principal Planning Consultant 
Place Services | Essex County Council  
 
Tel: 03330 136847 

 
Web: www.placeservices.co.uk 
 
Please note: This information contained within this letter is advisory and should only be considered 
as the opinion formed by specialist staff in relation to this particular matter. 



 

 

 

Civic Offices, New Road, Grays Essex, RM17 6SL 
 
Development Management 

 

 
 

Applicant: Stratera Energy 
Simon Gamage 
20 Western Avenue 
Milton Park 
Abingdon 
Oxfordshire OX14 4SH. 
United Kingdom 
 

Our Ref: 18/01649/SCO 

  
  

E-Mail:  dm@thurrock.gov.uk 

Date: 21 December 2018 

 
 

Dear Mr Gamage 
 
 

Reference:  18/01649/SCO 
Proposal:  Comments required for the Preliminary Environmental Information 

Report (PEIR) for a future NSIP/DCO for the construction, operation 
and decommissioning of a gas fired flexible electricity generation plant 
and battery storage facility, known as the Thurrock Flexible Generation 
Plant.   

Location:  Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant Fort Road Tilbury 
 

 
I refer to your letter dated (undated) regarding the above matter and your request that the 

Council provide views on the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) for a 

future NSIP/DCO for the construction, operation and decommissioning of a gas fired 

flexible electricity generation plant and battery storage facility, known as the Thurrock 

Flexible Generation Plant.   

 

The LPA has consulted internally with the following internal consultees: 

 

 Thurrock Council: Environmental Health; 

 Thurrock Council: Flood Risk Advisor; 

 Thurrock Council: Highways; 

 Thurrock Council: Landscape and Ecology Advisor; 

 Thurrock Council: Listed Buildings and Conservation Advisor; and 

 Thurrock Council: Public Health.  

 

All consultation responses can be viewed via the website link below using the application 

reference provided: 

https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/search-planning-records/planning-records-online  

 

Content of the Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) 
 

Based on the consultation responses received and my review of the PEIR I am satisfied 

that this list of topics demonstrates an assessment of the likely significant environmental 

mailto:Development.Management@thurrock.gov.uk
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/search-planning-records/planning-records-online


 

 

impacts of the proposal but I also request that the comments from the Thurrock Council 

consultation process are taken into consideration. 

 

Summary 
 

I trust that the above comments and enclosures are of assistance.  The above information 

is given without prejudice to the LPA’s future comments or position in relation to a formal 

submission pursuant to the 2008 Act. 

 

Yours sincerely 

Chris Purvis 

Principal Planning Officer (Major Applications) 

 

 



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

From: Stephen Vanstone 

Sent: 12 November 2018 14:31

To: contact

Cc: Trevor Harris

Subject: Flexible Generation Power Plant in Thurrock - S42 Planning Act 2008

Good afternoon Andrew, 
 
Thank you for your letter, concerning the proposed project above. 
 
I can advise that, as this project will have little or no impact on marine navigation, Trinity House has no comments to make and therefore do not require any further 
consultation on this matter. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Steve Vanstone 
Navigation Services Officer 
 
Navigation Directorate 
Trinity House 
Trinity Square 
Tower Hill 
London 
EC3N 4DH 
 
Tel: 0207 4816921 
E-mail:  
 

This communication, together with any files or attachments transmitted with it contains information that is confidential and may be subject to legal privilege and is intended solely for the 

use by the named recipient. If you are not the intended recipient you must not copy, distribute, publish or take any action in reliance on it. If you have received this communication in error, 

please notify the sender and securely delete it from your computer systems. Trinity House reserves the right to monitor all communications for lawful purposes. The contents of this email 

are protected under international copyright law. This email originated from the Corporation of Trinity House of Deptford Strond which is incorporated by Royal Charter in England and 

Wales. The Royal Charter number is RC 000622. The Registered office is Trinity House, Tower Hill, London, EC3N 4DH. 

 

The Corporation of Trinity House, collect and process Personal Data for the Lawful Purpose of fulfilling our responsibilities as the appointed General Lighthouse Authority for our area of 

responsibility under Section 193 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995 (as amended).  

 

We understand that our employees, customers and other third parties are entitled to know that their personal data is processed lawfully, within their rights, not used for any purpose 
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unintended by them, and will not accidentally fall into the hands of a third party. 

 

Our policy covering our approach to Data Protection complies with UK law accordingly implemented, including that required by the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR 2016), and 

can be accessed via our Privacy Notice and Legal Notice listed on our website (www.trinityhouse.co.uk)  

 

https://www.trinityhouse.co.uk/legal-notices  
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contact

From: >Plant Enquiries Team <PlantEnquiriesTeam@virginmedia.co.uk>

Sent: 01 November 2018 15:52

To: contact

Subject: RE: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant - Request for Information

 

Hi, 

 

As a plant enquiries team we will only be able to let you know where the present virgin media cables are, if you are looking for the same results please help us with the 

marked  map of the location along with the post code and grid reference so that it will be helpful for us to send you the results very soon. 

 

 
Thanks & Regards 

 

Stephy Jaison 

Virgin Media | Plant Enquiries |  
Mayfair Business Park, Broad Lane, Bradford, BD4 8PW
T 0870 888 3116 Opt 2 
Plant.enquiries.team@virginmedia.co.uk  
 

 

 

 

From: Battell, Ben  

Sent: 30 October 2018 12:22 
To: >Plant Enquiries Team; Browne, Mike; Westcott, Ian 

Cc: McCullagh, Stephen; Inglis, Keith; Sharma, Gaurav 02; Hudson, Ryan 
Subject: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant - Request for Information 

 

Dear all 

 

Please find attached correspondence from Thurrock Power in relation to the Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant.  

 

I am sending this to: 

 

1. The Real Estate team (copying Steve McCullagh who can then, if required, assist with a “dots on map” exercise to identify whether we have any technical/corporate or 

retail properties within the area in question, and if so the relevant team member will then respond direct to the relevant enquirer/authority or their appointed agent). 
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2. The Plant Enquiries team (copying Ryan Hudson and Gaurav Sharma) to undertake their own investigations in respect of network infrastructure and, if appropriate, 

liaise directly with the relevant enquirer/authority/agent. 

 

Kind regards 

 

Ben 

 

Ben Battell | Senior Legal Counsel (Real Estate)  

Virgin Media | Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Road, London W6 8BS  

D 0333 000 2930  

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Save Paper - Do you really need to print this e-mail? 

Visit www.virginmedia.com for more information, and more fun. 

This email and any attachments are or may be confidential and legally privileged and are sent solely for the attention of the addressee(s). 
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Atkins Telecoms
PO Box 290
500 Park Avenue
Aztec West
Almondsbury
BRISTOL BS32 4RZ

Tel: +44 (0) 1454 66 2881
Email: osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com

Our Ref: NRSWA/544/17442

YourRef: U/48

Date: 02 November 2018

Ardent Management Ltd

PO Box 3050

Wokingham

Berkshire

RG40 3YD

Attention: Catherine Wigmore

Thank you for your correspondence regarding a Stopping Up Order at Thurrock Flexible Generation 
Plant request for info.

Dear Sirs

A copy of the Vodafone process 4461 'Special Requirements relating to the external plant network of 
Vodafone' is available on request. The process provides guidance on working in the vicinity of 
Vodafone's apparatus.

New Roads and Street Works Act 1991
Stopping Up Order - Qualified Objection

Text22:We confirm that Vodafone has apparatus in the area and advises that we have a qualified objection to 
the order unless you, or your applicant, provides WS Atkins with written assurances, quoting our 
reference above, as to the safeguarding of Vodafone apparatus and the reimbursement of costs for 
any works necessary. As-built records showing our apparatus are enclosed

Text22:Where Vodafone’s apparatus is to remain in the stopped-up area we shall also require an undertaking 
that the applicant will grant a wayleave agreement to Vodafone on terms and conditions acceptable to 
Vodafone and the reimbursement of our (WS Atkins’) costs associated with the negotiation of the said 
wayleave. A copy of Vodafone’s standard stopping-up wayleave proforma is available on request.

Yours faithfully

OSM, UK and Ireland
Acting as agent for and on behalf of Vodafone

Please note. To enable us to process your application as quickly as possible, please ensure that you include a 
post code and/or an Ordnance Survey Grid Reference. Thank you for your co-operation.

This response is made only in respect to electronic communications apparatus forming part of the 
Vodafone Limited electronic communications network formerly being part of the electronic 
communications networks of Cable and Wireless UK, Energis Communications Limited, Thus Group 
Holdings Plc and Your Communications Limited.
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contact

From: Tajir,Tanveer < >

Sent: 02 November 2018 09:00

To: J ; fibreservicesstoppingup@vodafone.com

Cc: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK

Subject: Qualified Objection: Post - DCO - Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant request for info;    Our Ref:   NRSWA / 544 /17442

Attachments: 20181030124520.pdf; 20181030124456.pdf; rptCWStoppingUpObjection.pdf; Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant request for info.pdf; 

Vodafone-External-Apparatus-Special-Requirements-v3.pdf

 

Stopping Up Objection 
 

Dear Sirs, 

 

New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 

 

Stopping Up Order - Objection  

 

Our Ref:   NRSWA / 544 /17442   

 

Site: Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant request for info 

 

We refer to the below order and confirm that we have objections.  Please see the attached objection letter and maps. 

 

Please email Stopping Ups to osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com 

To enable us to process your application as quickly as possible, please ensure you include Grid References. 

 

Note:  Only affected parts are printed. 

Many thanks 

IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ = Your Next Step?:- 
Where apparatus is affected and requires diversion, please send all the scheme related proposals that affects the Vodafone Network to c3requests@vodafone.com with a request for a 'C3 Budget 
Estimate'.  Please ensure you include a plan showing proposed works.  (A location plan is insufficient for Vodafone to provide a costing).  These estimates will be provided by Vodafone directly, 
normally within 20 working days from receipt of your request.  Please include proof of this C2 response when requesting a C3 (using the ‘forward’ option).  Diversionary works may be necessary if the 
existing line of the highway/railway or its levels are altered.   
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Plant Enquiries Team 
T: +44 (0)1454 662881 
E: osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com 
 

ATKINS working on behalf of Vodafone: Fixed  
 

This response is made only in respect to electronic communications apparatus forming part of the Vodafone Limited electronic communications network formerly being part of the 
electronic communications networks of Cable & Wireless UK, Energis Communications Limited, Thus Group Holdings Plc and Your Communications Limited. 

PLEASE NOTE: 

The information given is indicative only.  No warranty is made as to its accuracy.  This information must not be solely relied upon in the event of excavation or other works carried out in the vicinity of 
Vodafone plant.  No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by Vodafone, its servants, or agents, for any error or omission in respect of information contained on this information.  The actual 
position of underground services must be verified and established on site before any mechanical plant is used.  Authorities and contractors will be held liable for the full cost of repairs to Vodafone's 
apparatus and all claims made against them by Third parties as a result of any interference or damage. 

� Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail 

 

 

From: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK   

Sent: 30 October 2018 18:30 

To: National Plant Enquiry's <OSM.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com>; 'John Woodhouse/GBR'  Cameron James/GBR 

; Steven Hasler  

Cc: Webb, Phillip, Vodafone UK < > 

Subject: FW: Post - DCO - Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant request for info 

 

Hi all 

 

Please find attached post received regarding a DCO affecting Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant (originals are in the post to Atkins).  Please can you check if this affects any 

of your areas.   

 

Kind regards  

 

 

 

Catherine Wigmore  

Counsel – Legal Operations 
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Vodafone HQ, The Connection, Newbury, 

Berkshire, RG14 2FN, Registered in England No 

1471587  

 

vodafone.co.uk  

 

The future is exciting. 

Ready?  

 

 
This message and any files or documents attached are confidential and may also be legally privileged, protected from disclosure and/or protected 
by other legal rules. It is intended only for the individual or entity named. If you are not the named addressee or you have received this email in 
error, please inform the sender immediately, delete it from your system and do not copy or disclose it or its contents or use it for any purpose. 
Thank you. Please also note that transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free.  
 

 

 

From: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK  

Sent: 30 October 2018 12:39 

To: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK <catherine.wigmore@vodafone.com> 

Subject: Your scan from Ricoh MFP 

 

 

 
C2 General 
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contact

From: Gopalakrishnan, Roshni 

Sent: 02 January 2019 11:54

To: J

Subject: Qualified Objection: Post - DCO: Thurrock Power station

Attachments: 20181213164342.pdf; 20181213164253.pdf; Qualified Objection: Post - DCO - Thurrock Flexible Generation Plant request for info;    Our Ref: 

NRSWA / 544 /17442; Thurrock Power.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear sirs, 
 
Qualified objection is already in place for the above stopping up, and same holds good for this as well, attached response for your information. 
 
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

IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ:- 
Diversionary works may be necessary if the existing line of the highway/railway or its levels are altered, where apparatus is affected.  Where apparatus is affected and requires diversion, you must 
submit draft details of the proposed scheme with a request for a 'C3 Budget Estimate' to c3requests@vodafone.com   These estimates should be provided by Vodafone normally within 20 working days 
from receipt of your request.  Please include proof of this C2 response when requesting a C3 (using the ‘forward’ option). 
 



2

� Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail 

 

 

From: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK <   

Sent: 13 December 2018 23:01 

To: Steven Hasler  John Woodhouse/GBR (john.woodhouse@cushwake.com) ; Cameron James/GBR 

; National Plant Enquiry's <OSM.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com> 

Cc: Webb, Phillip, Vodafone UK  

Subject: FW: Post - DCO: Thurrock Power station 

 

Hi all 

 

Please find attached post received regarding a DCO regarding Thurrock Power Plant (originals plus CD (not copied) are in the post to Atkins).  Please can you check if this 

affects any of your areas?  

 

Kind regards  

 

 

 

Catherine Wigmore  

Counsel – Legal Operations 

  

m  

 

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
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From: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK < >  

Sent: 13 December 2018 16:50 

To: Wigmore, Catherine, Vodafone UK < > 

Subject: Your scan from Ricoh MFP 

 

 

 

 
This email and any attached files are confidential and copyright protected. If you are not the addressee, any dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, nothing stated in 
this communication shall be legally binding. The ultimate parent company of the Atkins Group is SNC-Lavalin Group Inc. Registered in Québec, Canada No. 059041-0. Registered Office 455 boul. René-Lévesque Ouest, Montréal, 
Québec, Canada, H2Z 1Z3. A list of Atkins Group companies registered in the United Kingdom and locations around the world can be found at http://www.atkinsglobal.com/site-services/group-company-registration-details 
 
Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to. 
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1. Introduction 

This document sets out the procedure that will apply when Other Parties intend or are undertaking works in the 

vicinity of Vodafone apparatus (see Appendix B for further information on what constitutes Vodafone apparatus).    

2. Purpose of document 

This document provides a means by which the Vodafone specific special requirements relating to their apparatus, 

regardless of it being situated in the public highway / road, private street, land or any other areas, is made aware to 

Other Parties. 
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3. Scope 

This document will be presented to Other Parties or Contractors to encourage those undertaking works within the 

vicinity of Vodafone apparatus to refer to and comply with.  This is in order to protect where necessary the Vodafone 

apparatus and to avoid damage to the apparatus and loss of service. 

A National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) document NJUG Volume 3 Guidelines on the Management of Third Party 

Cable Ducting provides useful reference material. 

It should be noted that, where appropriate, additional information on avoiding danger from underground apparatus 

is contained within the HSG47 guidance book titled “Avoiding Danger from Underground Services.” 

4. Vodafone Network and Apparatus 

Damage to Vodafone apparatus is extremely disruptive and can be expensive to repair, especially where long lengths 

of cable have to be replaced. 

In order to maintain the network integrity and minimise disruption to service, it is essential that disturbances are 

absolutely minimal.  When working within the vicinity of Vodafone apparatus, extreme care is necessary in order to 

avoid costly repairs.  The Other Parties / Contractor shall make every effort to ensure that disturbance of Vodafone 

apparatus is no more than is absolutely necessary for the completion of the works in accordance with their contract.  

It should be noted that it is an offence to interfere with Vodafone apparatus without first contacting the company for 

advice. 

 

5. Plant records 

It is the responsibility of the Other Parties undertaking works which may affect Vodafone apparatus to obtain all 

relevant Vodafone plant records from our agent Atkins Global prior to works commencing.  This may be done by 

contacting the Atkins Global Plant Enquiries Team listed in Appendix B. 

Plant records for such enquiries will generally be provided within 10 working days of receipt and in compliance with 

the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 [NRSWA] requirements.  

6. Definitions 

The following definitions are applicable in this document: 

a) Apparatus - means all surface or sub-surface equipment and plant used by Vodafone including any 

associated cables or ducts owned, leased or rented by Vodafone.  

b) Cable - means any polythene or other sheath containing optical fibres or metallic conductors.   

c) Depth of cover - means the depth from the surface to the topmost barrel of the duct nest, in the case of 

ducts encased in concrete, to the top of the concrete, and in the case of directly buried cable, the top of the 

cable. 

d) Jointing chamber - means any manhole, surface box or other chamber giving access to Vodafone apparatus 

or their network. 

e) Utility - means an organisation licensed to provide gas, water, electricity, Cable TV or telecommunications 

services. 

f) Developer - means an organisation licensed to develop industrial/residential premises or given license to 

connect to utility apparatus. 
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g) Contractor - means the individual, firm or company contracted to undertake the work for a Utility or Other 

Parties. 

h) Other Parties - means the Utilities, Highway or Roads Authorities, Developers, Street/Roads Authority  

Section 50/109 licensees  

i) Site - means the location of, or in the vicinity of, the various works. 

7. Requirements   

Prior to commencing any work or moving heavy plant or equipment over any portion of the site, the Other Parties or 

Contractor shall notify Vodafone of their intentions.  This may be done by contacting Vodafone via the contact list in 

Appendix B. 

Upon receipt of this notification, Vodafone will identify if their apparatus is affected.  If any Vodafone apparatus is 

affected by the works then they will arrange for the necessary records to be provided and confirm details of Vodafone 

apparatus and network operated within the affected area or adjacent to the proposed work site. 

7.1 Location of Plant 
It is the responsibility of the Other Parties or Contractors to undertake adequate plant location procedures. These 

may include searches for metallic cables which must be performed by actively inducing a signal in a cable conductor 

via a transmitter. A passive search is not considered sufficient. 

 

Before applying a tracing signal to the Vodafone apparatus, the Other Parties or Contractors shall seek confirmation 

from Atkins Global that the Vodafone apparatus will not suffer any disruption to its networks normal workings as a 

result of the nature of the signal being induced. 

7.2 Trial excavations 
Optic fibre cables are very susceptible to damage from excavation tools.  They are not electrically conductive and 

cannot be located by radio induction methods.  Once an approximate location is known, the exact location must be 

ascertained by means of hand dug pilot holes. Where the work to be carried out by the Other Party or Contractor 

involves excavation in the vicinity of our apparatus, the Other Party or Contractor shall, by trial excavation at his own 

expense, determine the exact location and depth of the Vodafone apparatus. All excavations adjacent to the 

Vodafone apparatus are to be carried out by hand until the extent and /or location of the apparatus is known. 

All excavation work shall be executed in accordance with the current issue of Health and Safety series booklet 

HSG47, Avoiding danger from underground services. 

8. Depths of cover  

The Other Party or Contractor should note that the minimum depths of cover for Vodafone apparatus shall be 

maintained together with specified separation requirements.  Where the minimum depths of cover specified by 

Vodafone cannot be maintained, the Other Party or Contractor shall at their own expense, carry out the instructions 

of Vodafone requirements for the protection or diversion of their apparatus. 

The Other Party or Contractor should have particular regard to the possibility of encountering Vodafone apparatus 

(including ducts and cables), at depths of cover other than that reported.   

Surface cables (such as cables on bridges or walls) which are liable to be placed in danger from the Other Parties or 

Contractors works shall be protected, at the Other Parties expense, as directed by the Vodafone representative. 

9. Separation 

Reference should be made to HSG47 to ensure that adequate separation is achieved.  The following details outline 

the specific requirements of Vodafone and capture the HSG47 requirements.     
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9.1 High voltage cables 
High voltage single core cables of 1000 V and above shall have a minimum clearance from Company Apparatus of 

500 mm. 

High voltage multi-core cables of 1000 V and above shall have a minimum clearance from Company Apparatus of 

350 mm. 

In exceptional circumstances where the above clearances cannot be maintained, the separating distance may be 

reduced to a minimum of 175 mm.  In such circumstances, concrete, of a quality as directed by the Company 

Representative, must be inserted to completely fill the space between the High Voltage cable and the Company 

Apparatus, in accordance with the requirements of the Company Representative.  Any further services must have a 

minimum clearance of 250 mm from the concrete.                         

9.2 Low voltage cables 
Low voltage cables of less than 1000 V shall have a minimum clearance from Company Apparatus of 180 mm.  In 

exceptional circumstances where the above clearance cannot be maintained, the separating distance may be 

reduced to a minimum of 75 mm.  In such circumstances, concrete, of a quality as directed by the Company 

Representative, must be inserted to completely fill the space between the services, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Company Representative.  Any further services must have a minimum clearance of 250 mm from 

the concrete.                  

9.3 Ancillary electrical apparatus 
Street furniture such as lamp posts, traffic posts and other such ancillary electrical apparatus shall have a minimum 

clearance of 150 mm from underground Company Apparatus and 600mm clearance from above ground Company 

Apparatus.                         

9.4 High pressure gas mains and other Undertakers plant/equipment 
High pressure gas mains shall have a minimum clearance of 450 mm from Company Apparatus. All other 

undertakers’ plant and equipment, when running in parallel with Company Apparatus, shall have a minimum 

clearance of 200mm.  Where gas mains cross Company Apparatus, the minimum clearance shall be 200mm. All 

other undertakers’ plant and equipment, when running across Company Apparatus, shall have a minimum clearance 

of 100 mm. NJUG Volume 1, Guidelines on the positioning and colour coding of underground utilities’ apparatus 

refers.                                  

9.5 Other Undertakers plant 
Other undertakers’ plant and equipment which runs in parallel with Company Apparatus shall have a minimum 

clearance of 200mm.  All other undertakers’ plant and equipment when running across Company Apparatus shall 

have a minimum clearance of 100mm.               

9.6 Tramways  
Each separating distance shall be individually agreed with the Company Representative.  

 

 

 

10. Jointing chambers 

10.1 Protection 
Footway type jointing chambers are not designed to withstand carriageway loadings.  

Where such chambers are liable to be placed at risk, either temporarily or permanently, from vehicular traffic or from 

the movement of plant and/or equipment, they will need to be adequately protected. Alternatively, they may have to 

be demolished and rebuilt to carriageway standards, at the Other Parties or Contractors expense under supervision 

of Vodafone representative.  
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All Vodafone jointing chambers and / or other access points shall be kept clear and unobstructed.  Access for 

vehicles, winches, cable drums and / or any further equipment required by Vodafone for the maintenance of its 

apparatus, must be maintained at all reasonable times.  

10.2 Access 
The covers to Vodafone jointing chambers and / or apparatus shall only be lifted by means of the appropriate keys 

and under the direct supervision of a Vodafone representative.  Other Parties or Contractors shall not enter any 

Vodafone jointing chamber and / or apparatus unless under the supervision of a Vodafone representative and in any 

case not before the mandatory gas test has been carried out in the presence of Vodafone representative and such 

checks have shown it to be safe to enter the Vodafone chamber and / or apparatus.  The Other Parties or Contractors 

shall be given reasonable access to Vodafone apparatus and chambers when required.  

11. Notification periods 

Where the Other Parties or Contractors works or the movement of plant or equipment may endanger Vodafone 

apparatus, the Other Party or Contractor shall give the Vodafone at least 7 working days’ notice in writing of the 

intended date to commence operations.    

No excavation should be made without first consulting the relevant Vodafone apparatus layout drawings, which will 

be made available from the Vodafone agent Atkins Global on request and allowing 28 working days for processing 

the relevant drawings. However, should this not be possible, direct contact should be made to the Atkins Global 

Plant Enquiries Team as soon as possible to assess the situation.    

When excavating, moving or backfilling (including use of Foamed Concrete for Reinstatements – FCR) around 

Vodafone apparatus, Vodafone shall be given adequate prior written notice of the Other Parties or Contractors 

intentions, in order that the works may be adequately supervised.  Such notice shall not be less than 3 working days.  

 

12. Excavation and backfill 

All excavations adjacent to Vodafone apparatus are to be carried out by hand until the extent and or location of the 

Vodafone apparatus is known. 

Use of mechanical borers and / or excavators shall not be used without the supervisory presence of a Vodafone 

representative or a given exemption.  

Shuttering of the excavation or support to Vodafone apparatus, at the Other Parties or Contractors expense, shall be 

used as directed by the Vodafone representative. 

At least 7 working days’ notice must be given to Vodafone in order that any special protective measures which may 

be required to protect Vodafone apparatus, at the Other Parties or Contractors expense, when equipment such as 

pile driving, explosives, laser cutting high powered RF equipment or RF test gear, is to be used in conjunction with 

the works. 

Other Parties or Contractors are advised to refer to the National Joint Utilities Group publication: NJUG Volume 1- 

Guidelines on the Positioning and Colour Coding of Underground Utilities’ Apparatus 

13. Foam concrete 

If foam concrete is being used as the backfill material, it shall not be used either above or within 500 mm of any 

Company Apparatus.  A suitable material in accordance with the specification for the Reinstatement of Openings in 

Highways shall be substituted. 
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14. Attendance of Company Representative 

If a situation requires the attendance on site of a Vodafone representative for a continuous period of more than 6 

hours, suitable facilities shall be provided by the Other Party or Contractor, at their expense, to meet the office and 

ablution requirements. If a situation arises that requires urgent attention Vodafone will endeavour to attend site 

within 2 hours for all other occasions arising, 24 hours. 

15. Damage reports 

In the event of any damage whatsoever occurring to Vodafone apparatus, the Other Party or Contractor shall 

immediately inform Vodafone by contacting their 24/7 number , (for contact details please refer to Appendix A).       

 

All relevant costs of any subsequent repair and / or removal of the Vodafone apparatus shall be charged to the Other 

Party or Contractor, irrespective of who affects the repair. 

 

The above requirements do not relieve the Other Party or Contractor of any of their obligations under their contract. 
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16.  Appendix A – Street Works Team Contacts for 

Vodafone 

 

 

Function Address Phone Email Address 

Streetworks Team Vodafone Damage 

Claims, Pavilion 4, 

1-2 Berkeley 

Square , 99 

Berkeley Street 

Glasgow G3 7HR 

0333 304  0759 utilitiescentre@vodafone.com 

 

Customer Complaints n/a 0333 304 0762 n/a 

Liability Claims 

Or 

Damage to  

Vodafone Apparatus  

Vodafone Damage 

Claims, Pavilion 4, 

1-2 Berkeley 

Square , 99 

Berkeley Street 

Glasgow G3 7HR 

0333 304 1104 claims@vodafone.com 

 

Diversionary Works 

C2/C3 

 

Atkins Global,                           

PO Box 290,                            

500 Aztec West,               

Almondsbury,                       

Bristol,                                  

BS32 4RZ. 

T: 01454 662881 

F: 01454 663330 

 

osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com 

Diversionary Works 

C4 / Escalations 

Smale House, 

Floor 2E, 114 

Great Suffolk 

Street, London, 

SE1 OSL 

02075281485 c3requests@vodafone.com 

Emergencies 

24 Hour – Defects & 

Faults 

n/a 0333 304 0762 n/a 

Plant Enquiries  

 Vodafone inc: Cable 

& Wireless; Mercury 

Communications; 

Thus Plc; Energis; 

Scottish Telecom;  

Your Comms; 

Norweb Comms  

Atkins Global 

PO Box 290 

500 Aztec West, 

Almondsbury, 

Bristol, 

BS32 4RZ 

T: 01454 662881 

F: 01454 663330 

osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com 

 

mailto:osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com
mailto:osm.enquiries@atkinsglobal.com
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17. Appendix B – What constitutes Vodafone Network 

Vodafone own fibre network dedicated to business and residential users of telecommunications and has an 

international cable network that provides connectivity to 153 countries, either directly or indirectly through partners, 

reaching across the Atlantic Ocean, through Europe and on to India and throughout Asia. Spanning approximately 

500,000 km in length, including interests in more than 69 major global cable systems, our next-generation network 

improves the quality and performance of telecommunications services through our use of advance optical and IP 

transmission. 

In the UK & Ireland Vodafone’s overall network includes the following legacy networks now owned through 

acquisitions or Company name changes. 

Below are examples of what you could see on the streets and should be aware of: 

 

Vodafone Limited 

 

  

Cable & Wireless U.K  
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Mercury Communications Limited 

 

    

Energis   Communications Limited 

 

  

Thus plc  
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Scottish Telecom  

 

 

  

Your Communications 
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Norweb Communications 

 

 

Our apparatus is installed in roads and streets of UK and Ireland, however in some places is undistinguishable from 

other operators’ apparatus, for example in City Centres where high quality infill modular paving chamber covers are 

found; some with labels and some without.  

 

See below as examples: 
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The apparatus shown here is now owned, maintained and still in operation by Vodafone and includes. 

 

Vodafone Limited 

Cable & Wireless U.K 

Mercury Communications Limited 

Energis Communications Limited 

Thus plc, now Thus Group Holdings Limited 

Your Communications Group Limited  

 

Please see the Contact Details in Appendix A for Plant Enquiries and help on site. 
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18. About this Document 

Content Owner 

 

 

Changes since last version 

Reformatted using the current Vodafone template to include updated Contact Details . 

 

End of Document 
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contact

From: Gill and Keith Wyles >

Sent: 10 January 2019 16:38

To: contact

Subject: Proposed Flexible Generation Power Plant in Thurrock

Importance: High

To whom it may concern 

 

I am appalled to learn of yet more proposed development in this area, I was completely unaware of this proposal until recently. I believe many people have 

assumed that this proposed development is the replacement of Tilbury B power station, and not yet another site altogether. 

 

The development that you propose would bring increased traffic and cause untold upheaval to local roads, which are already under a great deal of pressure. 

The road system in this area was designed for horse and cart and there has already been an exponential increase in movements especially over the last 

twenty years.  

 

The noise and pollution caused by this proposed power station is also of great concern, already there are high levels of pollution in many local areas. The 

proposed Thames crossing will increase pollution and noise in this area to a wholly undesirable level, and there is another power station planned for the 

Tilbury site, how much more detritus can this area take?! 

 

West Tilbury is a designated conservation area, and as a resident I am deeply concerned by this proposal. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Mrs Gill Wyles 
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contact

From: Jacqui Phillips 

Sent: 09 January 2019 19:11

To: contact

Subject: Thurrock power flexible regeneration plant

I have been unable to complete your feedback form on line, so I am writing my major concerns and objections regarding your proposals in an email 

 

1) The destruction of West Tilbury commons land caused by the construction and development of the proposed site. West Tilbury commons are ancient and have historical 

value to the local area, this history cannot be replaced. 

2) The pollution caused by the proposed power plant. Nitrous oxide is released from fossil fuel burning power stations. There is string evidence that heavy duty diesel 

vehicles make a major contribution to nitrous oxide levels. Thurrock already has high levels of air pollution. Road transport and energy production are the greatest sources 

of nitrous oxide emissions. 

3) The area around West and East Tilbury is already facing huge disruption from the proposed Lower Thames Crossing. Your consultation states proposed construction to 

start 2021, just to coincide with LTC starting. The local roads are small country lanes and struggle with the current levels of HGVs. Life in this area will become intolerable, 

with huge numbers of HGVs, levels of pollution, noise pollution and dust causing chaos and unsafe local roads for the local community. 

4) The proposed access route utilising Cooper Shaw Road, Church Road going across Low Street railway crossing and developing a 'temporary ' haul road through current 

green fields is totally ludicrous. We already have large numbers of HGVs using this route going across the railway and on towards Readmans industrial units. The LTC main 

construction site is proposed for this area, the LTC intends to construct a 41 foot high viaduct 6 lanes across to cross the railway. The LTC will inflict constant disruption to 

our local community. The roads mentioned above are very narrow lanes unfit for HGVs, 2 HGVs cannot pass each other. The area of Church road just before the level 

crossing before it becomes Station road has a very narrow area with houses and brick walls on either side. YOUR PROPOSAL TO USE THESE TINY ROADS IS FLAWED. 

 

Needless to say we don't want this development, we feel that there are alternative sites to Thurrock, that this development will rape our local countryside, our local green 

belt. 

Yours sincerely  

Jacqui and Rose Phillips  
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Kirsty Cassie

From: Andrew Troup

Sent: 06 November 2018 16:41

To: Stephanie Boswall; Kirsty Cassie

Cc: Tom Dearing

Subject: FW: Statera "biggin farm"

I spoke to Simon last week to confirm we were probably in the hands of the Highway authority but that we thought the best route would be in the field rather than trying 

to use the track  or parts of biggin lane.  

 

Pretty friendly and appreciated the call. The haul road will run close to Biggins Marsh Farm but I did reiterate that it would only be for our construction traffic and finite in 

use. 

 

From: contact <contact@thurrockpower.co.uk>  

Sent: 25 October 2018 11:01 

To: Andrew Troup <atroup@stateraenergy.co.uk> 

Subject: FW: Statera "biggin farm" 

 

 

 

From: simon merchant   

Sent: 24 October 2018 18:17 

To: contact <contact@thurrockpower.co.uk> 

Subject: Re: Statera "biggin farm" 

 

Of course   

You can call me anytime tomorrow i can take call while I’m at work  

07940 567961 

 

Regards Simon  

Sent from my iPhone 

 

On 24 Oct 2018, at 13:47, contact <contact@thurrockpower.co.uk> wrote: 



2

Hi Simon, 

 

Thanks for getting in touch do you have a telephone number we could call you on.  

 

Kind regards, 

 

Kirsty 

Kirsty Cassie 

Thurrock Power LimitedThurrock Power Limited 

1st Floor | 145 Kensington Church Street 

London  | W8 7LP 

Tel: 02071860580 

Email: contact@thurrockpower.co.uk 

Website: www.thurrockpower.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: wordpress@thurrockpower.co.uk <wordpress@thurrockpower.co.uk> On Behalf Of simon merchant 

Sent: 23 October 2018 19:44 

To: contact <contact@thurrockpower.co.uk> 

Subject: Statera "biggin farm" 

 

From: simon merchant  

 

Subject: biggin farm 

 

Name : simon merchant 

 

Email Address 

 

Message Body: just had delivery of your information pack, we are a grade 2 listed building please confirm the minimum distance of work that cannot be 

undertaken near to a listed building please advise  

 

sj merchant 
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-- 

This e-mail was sent from a contact form on Statera (https://www.thurrockpower.co.uk) 

Disclaimer 

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are 

not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and 
may be unlawful. 
 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for 
business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here. 




















































































































